R. N. SARAF & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2659/2, GURDWARA ROAD, KAROL BAGH
NEW DELHI 110 005

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF M J CASTING LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of M J CASTING LIMITED (“the
company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Statement of Cash Flows and the statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (collectively referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 (the Act) with respect to preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of The Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing spccificd under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether duc to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluagi
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting esyin

made by the Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation o T@('
AS financial statements. %
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act, in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the statement of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31*
March 2018, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure’A’ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified in Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31st 2018 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31st 2018,
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure ‘B’ and




(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in
its financial statements.

1. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

v. The disclosure in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealing in
specified bank notes during the period from 8™ November, 2016 to 30®™ December,

2016 have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2018.

For R.N. SARAF & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Registration No. 002023N)

o St S
R.N. SARAF, F.C.A.
Membership No. 12439

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 11" May, 2018




R. N. SARAF & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2659/2, GURDWARA ROAD, KAROL BAGH
NEW DELHI 110 005

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBER OF M
J CASTING LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 3157 2018

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of information and explanations
given to us, we state that: -

() (@

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and the situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified in phased manner, in accordance with this programme certain fixed
assets were verified during the year. According to the information and explanation given to us,
no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

(i)  The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during

(iii)

(iv)

)
(vi)

(vii)(a)

the year. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical
stocks and the book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books
of accounts.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the requirement of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c¢) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

The company does not have any loans, investments, guarantees and security referred to in
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The nature of the Company’s business is such that maintenance of cost records specified by the
central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, is not
applicable.

According to the records, information and explanations provided to us, the Company is
generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax and other statutory dues applicable to
it and no undisputed amounts payable were outstanding as at March 31*,2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

Reqn, No. 002023 N/ o |
NEW DELH! /£
bt



(b) There is no material dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs or duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and services tax which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. There were no dues repayable to debenture
holders, government and financial institutions.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of
the Order is not applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company

or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a nidhi company, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statement as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi)  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934.

For R.N. SARAF & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Registration No. 002023N)

Aw—/r’/—N

R.N. SARAF, F.C.A.
Membership No. 12439

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 11" May, 2018




R. N. SARAF & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2659/2, GURDWARA ROAD, KAROL BAGH
NEW DELHI 110 005

ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE M J CASTING LIMITED ON THE INTERNAL FINANACIAL CONTROLS
UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M J CASTING LIMITED
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition ot the company's assets that could have a material eftect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R.N. SARAF & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Registration No. 002023N)

Place: Gurgaon ZWDELH / &/ R.N. SARAF, F.C.A.
Date: 11™ May, 2018




M J Casting Limited
Balance Sheet

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars Note 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 1 April, 2016
4 Z e
A ASSETS
n Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 9,972.60 10,938.90 11,147.30
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 275.91 15.54 272,15
(c) Intangible assets 4 13.82 14.10 3.80
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 250 1.83 1.83
(ii} Other financial assets 7 102,93 147.30 122,92
(e} Defemed tax assets (nel) 8 47238 581.36 718.88
Sub-total - Non-current assets 10,840.14 11,699.02 12,266.88
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 869.13 982.50 784.72
(b} Financial assels
(i) Trade receivables 10 4,183.64 2,079.19 2,087.02
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 29.94 37.10 11.21
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 18.37 17.21 16.09
(iv) Other financial assets 13 19.52 18.32 15.35
(c) Current tax assets (net) 14 24.33 0.32
(d) _Other current assets 15 200.99 341.37 32245
Sub-total - Current assets 5,321.59 3.500.02 3,237.16
TOTAL - ASSETS 16,161.73 15,199.04 15,504.04
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Equity
{a) Equity share capital 16 5,850.00 5,850.00 5,850.00
(b) Other equity 17 470.75 (1,037.01) (1.543.99)
Sub-total - Shareholders’ funds 6,320.75 4,812.99 4.306.01
(2) Liabilities
(a) Non-current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities
-8% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 18 2,204.00 2,204.00 2,204.00
-Borrowings 19 1,462.96 3,989.70 4,568.69
(ii) Provisions 20 152.58 116.24 129.13
Sub-total - Non-current liabilities 3,819.54 6,309.94 6,901.82
(b) Current liabilities
(i) Financial liabilities
-Borrowings 21 1,842,26 710.02 566.72
-Trade payables 22 2,928.32 1,608.18 2,400.79
-Other financial liabilities 23 736.66 1.660.04 1,263.02
(ii} Current tax liabilities (net) 24 1.78 -
(iii) Other current liabilities 25 504.95 95.87 61.94
{iv) Provisions 26 7.47 2.00 3.74
Sub-total - Current liabilities 6.021.44 4,076.11 4.296.21
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,161.73 15,199.04 15,504.04
See accompanying notes to financial stat
In terms of our report attached Y

For R. N. SARAF & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Registration no. 002023N
Rorfes /o
R.N. SARAF, F.C.
Membership No. 12439

26593/2. Gurudwara Road,

NEW DELHI @
Karal Bagh, New Delhi - 110 005
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Place : Gurgaon
Date ;: May 11, 2018

Chief finance officer
'‘AN- AGQPAT321N

Lalit Khubchangam—
Company secretary
Membership No. A38912




M J Casting Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

(¥in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 11, 2018

Membership No. A38912

e : Gurgaon
g May 11,2018

For the year For the year
Particulars ote 31 Mear:::,d 2018 3 M:':::,d 2017
¥ 4
A Income
(i} Revenue from operations 27 28,950 81 23,084 54
(ii) Other income 28 5728 1320
Total Income 29,008.09 23,097.74
B8 Expenses
(i) Cost of materials consumed 29 16,373.00 11,449.70
(i) Purchases of stock-in-trade 30 103.15 2096
(iii) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade 31 86 91 (69 21)
{iv) Excise duty on sales 844 59 283673
(v) Employee benefils expense 32 2,895.34 2,141.70
{vi) Finance costs 33 47436 77975
{vii) Depreciation and amortisation expense 34 166066 1,71566
{viii) Other expenses 35 4,520 44 347386
Total expenses 26,958.45 22,349.15
[ Profit before tax (A - B) 2,049.64 748.59
D Tax expense:
{i) Curent tax 446 44 112,20
(ii) Deferred tax 3 22120 134.72
Total tax expenses 667.64 246.92
E Net profit for the year (C - D) 1,382.00 501.67
F Other Comprehensive income for the year
(i) ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 13.54 8.10
-Deferred tax on remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 469 2,80
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8.85 5.30
Total comprehensive income for the year (E + F) 1,390.85 506.97
G Earnings per share (Nominal value per share of ¥ 10/- each):
-Basic (in 2) 37(a) 236 086
-Diluted (in 2) 37(b) 236 086
See ing notes to
In terms of our report attached N
"n
For R. N. SARAF & CO. and on bentwnu oard of direct
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 1
Registration no. 002023N = *-.‘; ‘.N\ Sanjay Jain
At »/ — rector Director
R.N. SARAF, F.C.A 83122 Din No. 033 5
Membership No. 12439 £ [ ¢
2653912, Gurudwara Road, Lalit Khub&'%-
Karol Bagh, New Delhi - 110 005 Company secretary




MJ Casting Limited
Statement of change in Equity

A Equity share capital

(Z in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Membership No. 12439 "
270, No. 002023 14 =~/
p e
2658/2, Gurudwara Road, NEW DELHL &
Karol Bagh, New Delhi - 110 005 i&f finance officer

PAN- AGQPA7321N

Place : Gurgaon
Date ;: May 11, 2018

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 11, 2018

Particulars Note Amount
¥
As at 01 April, 2016 5,850.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital 16 -
As at 31 March, 2017 5,850.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital 16 -
As at 31 March, 2018 5,850.00
B Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars
Retained Earnings
4
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 {1.543.99)
- Profit for the year 50167
- Other comprehensive income for the year 810
- Deferred tax on OC| (280)
506.97
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 (1,037.01)
- Profit for the year 1,382.00
- Other comprehensive income for the year 1354
- Deferred tax on share based payment 116.91
- Deferred tax on OCI (469)
1,507.76
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 470.75
In terms of our report attached.
For R. N. SARAF & CO. & board of directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Regsiration no. 002023N Sanjay Jain
N lE '/’_\ O\ Director
R.N. SARAF, F.C.A '* Din No. 03364405

la/{/\')"
Lalit KhubaFamaanr

Company secretary
Membership No. A38912




MJ Casting Limited
Cash Flow Statement

{€in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Membership No. 12439

"

Regn. No. 002023 1 +-
2659/2, Gurudwara Road, NEW DELH! /“r:' f
Karol Bagh, New Delhi - 110 005 R

Place : Gurgaon
Date : May 11, 2018

e

bief finance officer
PAN- AGQPA7321N

Place :

ate |

Gurgaon
May 11, 2018

LA
£
Lalit Khubchaffaamm

Company secretary
Membership No. A38912

Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
T T T
A Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profil before tax 2,049.64 748.59
Adjustments for:
Actuarial Gain considered under OCI 13.54 810
Provision for doubtful debls/advances 28.69 4
Depreciation and amortisation 1.660.66 171566
Loss on sale / distard of fiaed assels 351 1289
Finance cosis 474.36 77975
Inlerest income (928) (8.31)
4.221.12 3.256.68
Operaling profit / (loss) before working capilal changes 4,221.12 3,256 68
Changes in wouking copdal;
Adjustments for (increase} / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 113,37 (197.78)
Trade receivables {2,133 14) 783
Other financial assets 43,17 (27 35)
Current tax asset 2433 (24 01)
Other currenl assets 140.38 (18.92)
Bank Balance olher than cash & cash equivalenis (1.16) (1.12)
(1,813.05) (261.36)
Adji for i /( in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 1,320.14 (792.61)
Other financial liabililies (923.38) 397 02
Current tax liabilities 1.78 -
Other current liabilities 409.08 3393
Short-term provisions 547 (1.74)
Long-term provisions 3634 849.43 (12.89) (376.29)
3,257 49 261903
Ineame taxes paid {446.44) (112.20)
Net cash flow from / {used in) operating actlvities (A) 2,811.05 2,506.83
B Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on fixed assets (962.68) (1,275.77)
Pracgaeds on sale of fixed assels 472 195
Proceeds on encashment of Equity Shares of OPG power generalion privale Itd 015 -
Investment in Equity Shares of OPG pawer generation privale limited (0.82) -
Interest received from bank 928 831
(949.34) (1,265.52)
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities {B) (949.34) (1,265.52)
c Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (2,526 74) (578.99)
Proceeds from other shorl-lemm borrowings 113224 143.30
Finance cost (474.36) (779.75)
(1,868 86) (1.215.45)
[Net cash flow from / {used in) financing activities (C) (1,868.86) (1,215.45)
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C}) {7.16) 25.89
Cash and cash equivalenls at lhe beginning of the year 37,10 121
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29.94 37.10
Comprises:
Balances wilh banks
On current accounts 667 6.13
On cash credit accounts 18.67 2886
Cash on hand 4.60 211
Cash and cash equivalent as per Balance Sheet {Note 11) 29.94 37.10
See panying Notes to
In terms of our report attached. )
For R. N. SARAF & CO, gard of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Registration no. 002023N Sanjay Jain
Rose e > Director
R.N. SARAF, F.C.A Din No. 033644




M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Note 1:

Note 2:

Corporate Information
M J Casting Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in India on December 23, 2010. The Company is

primarily involved in the manufacturing and trading in castings for all kinds of auto engineering and other
industries.

Basis of Preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2017 were prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied.
An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 48.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 11%" May,
2018.

All income and expenditure having a material bearing in the financial statements are recognized on accrual
basis.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

(a) Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
(b) Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Present value of defined benefit obligations
{
fﬁf
O\Recn No. 002023 M/ w r'

\ “'EW ueun o

'.\

\?9’“




M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

D. Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Areas involving critical estimates or judgements arc:

- Estimation of current tax expense — Note 36
- Estimation of fair value of unlisted securities = — Note 6
- Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 42

- Recognition and measurement of commitments and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources — Note 38 & 39

E. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable -inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting

period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

- Note 43 — share-based payment;
- Note 47 — financial instruments.
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M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Note 3: Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these financial
statements.

A)

B)

Foreign currency

i. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transactions.

ii. Foreign currency loans covered by forward exchange contracts are translated at the rate prevailing on the
date of transaction as increased or decreased by the proportionate difference between the forward contract
and exchange rate on the date of transaction.

iii. Current assets and liabilities (other than those relating to fixed assets and investments) are restated at the
rates prevailing at the year end or at the forward rate where forward cover has been taken. The difference
between exchange rate at the year end and at the date of transaction is recognized as income or expense in
Statement of Profit and Loss. In respect of transactions covered by forward exchange contracts, the
difference between the contract rate and the rate on the date of transaction is recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial Instruments
i.  Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;
- FVOCI — equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL,




M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL : These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. However, see Note 3(b)(iii) for
derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets at amortised cost : These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI : These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. See Note
3(b)(iii) for financial liabilities designated as hedging instruments.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised. |

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

)

v. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host
contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initialty measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates and certain derivatives and non-derivative financial liabilities as hedges of foreign exchange risk
on a net investment in a foreign operation.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and
hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the other equity under ‘effective portion of
cash flow hedges’. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is recognised in OCI
is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from
inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts as the
hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships. The change in fair value of the forward element of
forward exchange contracts (‘forward points’) is separately accounted for as a cost of hedging and recognised
separately within equity.

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item such as
inventory, the amount accumulated in other equity is included directly in the initial cost of the non-financial
item when it is recognised. For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount accumulated in other equity
is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged expected future cash
flows affect profit or loss.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is
terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting for
cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in other equity remains there until, for
a hedge of a transaction resulting in recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in the non-financial
item’s cost on its initial recognition or, for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to profit or loss in the same
period or periods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated
in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

(a) expected to be realised in, or is intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
(b) held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

(c) expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or
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M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

D)

(d) cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A Liability is current when:
(e) it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
(f) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(g) itis duc to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
(h) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of

bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

i)  Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has opted to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment (see Note 4)

iii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iv) Depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided over the useful life of the assets based on technological evaluation or
the useful life for the tangible assets prescribed under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 as under:
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M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

E)

(a) Buildings

-Factory building 30 Years
-Fences, wells, tube wells 5 Years
-Temporary structure 3 Years

b) Plant and Equipments

- Electrical Installation 10 years
- Bins/crates/trollies etc. 3 Years
-Tools and Dies Period over which

expected to be
available for use

-Others 15 years
() Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
(d Vehicles 8 years
(e) Office Equipments 5 years
® Computer Hardware

-Servers and networks 6 years

-End user devices 3 years

Intangibles

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an
intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement of Profit or Loss over their estimated useful lives, from the
date that they are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the
asset. Accordingly, at present, these are being amortised on straight line basis.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

i) Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible
assets recognised as at 1 April 2016, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the

deemed cost of such intangible assets. (Note 4)

The cost of Intangible assets is amortized over a period of four years the estimated economic life of the assets.
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M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

F)

Impairment

i) Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime
expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected
credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30

days past due. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is 90 days or
more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, disco their present value using a
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M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

G)

H)

D

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not
generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to remaining
assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred
tax assets, and employee benefit assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Company’s
other accounting policies. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property and plant and equipment are no longer amortised or
depreciated.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

i) Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or foss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease.
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M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

J)

K)

L)

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise “finished goods and work-in-progress”, are carried at the lower of cost (moving
average price) and net realisable value.

Inventories, which comprise “raw materials, stores and spares, stock in trade, gas, and material in transit”, are
value at landed cost.

Cost of inventories compriscs all costs of purchasc, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

In determining the cost, moving average cost method is used. In the case of manufactured inventories and work
in progress, fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related
finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not
written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of
the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
Finished goods inventory is inclusive of excise duty (where applicable)

[nventories in transit are valued at cost.

Appropriate adjustments are made to the carrying value of damaged, slow moving and obsolete inventories
based on management’s current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. The amount
recognized as revenue is inclusive of excise duty and exclusive of sales tax, value added taxes (VAT), goods &
service tax (GST). This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment
extends beyond normal credit terms. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or
managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Impact of implementation of Goods and Service Tax (GST) on the financial statements

In accordance with Ind AS 18 on “Revenue” and Schedule III to the companies Act, 2013, Sales for the
financial year 2016-17 and for the period 1 April to 30 June 2017 were reported gross of Excise Duty and net
of Value Added Tax (VAT)/Sales Tax. Excise Duty was reported as separate expense line item. Consequent to
the introduction of Goods and Service Tax (GST) with effect from 1 July 2017, VAT/Sales Tax, Excise duty
etc. have been subsumed into GST and accordingly the same is not recognised as a part of sales as per the
requirements of Ind AS 18. This has resulted in lower reported sales in comparison to the sales reported under
the pre-GST structure of indirect tax. With the change in structure of indirect taxes, expenses are also being
reported net of taxes. Accordingly, Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 and in particular,
Sales, absolute expenses, elements of Working Capital (Inventories, Trade payable, other current assets/current
liabilities etc.) and ratios in percentage of sales, are not comparable with the figures of previous year.
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

M)

N)

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

i) Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are
recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

Provisions (Employee benefits)
i)  Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii) Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as
an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of
the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the
related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with
non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

iii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and ESI to Government administered fund
which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

iv) Defined benefit plan

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a
defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.
The calculation of the Company’s obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

v) Other long term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated
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0)

absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of
such period, the benefit to such extent is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an
obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Income taxes

i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related

to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised
for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;
- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the company recognises a deferred tax
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred
tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the
year in which the timing differences originate.




M J CASTING LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

P)

Q)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events of bonus issue
and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the
year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed to be converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

(¥ in lacs, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 6 :-  Investments (Non-current)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Numbers (in z Numbers (in z Numbers {in z
lacs) lacs) __lacs)
{Unquoted-Trade investment)
Investment in equity instruments*
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each of OPG power
generation private limited fully paid up
At the beginning of the year 017 1.83 017 1.83 - -
Add: Acquired during the year Qo7 0.82 - - 0.17 1.83
Less: Encashed during the year 0.01 0.15 - - - -
At the end of the year 0.23 250 017 1.83 017 1.83
Total 0.23 2.50 0.17 1.83 0.17 1.83
*Refer Note 47
Note 7 :-  Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ T T
Security deposits 102.93 14730 122,92
Total 102.93 147.30 122.92
Note 8 :-  Deferred tax assets (net)
As at As at As at

Particulars

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

01 April, 2016

T

T

T

Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets 570.39 697.05 827.45
Gross deferred tax liability 570.39 697.05 827.45
Deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful debts/advances 11.59 1.56 3.15
Provision for employee benefits 67.80 39.64 40.86
Deferred tax on share based payment 116.91 -
rMinimum alternative tax credit entitlement 558.64 112.20 -
Unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under 287.82 1,125.01 1,502.32
Income Tax Act

Gross deferred tax asset 1,042.77 1,278.41 1,546.33
Deferred tax assets (Net) 472.38 581.36 718.88

*Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset to the extent they relate to the same governing taxation laws.

*In view of the Company's past financial performance and future profit projections, the Company expects that it shall generale

sufficient future taxable income to fully recover the deferred tax assets

N a)
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Movement in Deferred tax assets (net)

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Property,
plantand | Provisionfor | Provisionfor [ .. ;’e“arzz:’a’g::
Particul equipments |doubtful debts/| employee Alt tive Tax P d Total
articulars and intangible advance benefits ernative Ta f an :Ia"y
assets 'orward losses
¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥
At April 01, 2016 (827.45) 3.15 40.86 - 1,502.32 718.88
(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss 13040 (159) 1.58 11220 (377.31) (134.72)
to olher comprehensive income - (2.80) & - (2.80)
At March 31, 2017 (697.05) 1.56 39.64 112.20 1,125.01 581.36
(Charged) / credited:
to profit or loss 12666 1003 3285 446 44 (837 19) (221.20)
to other comprehensive income - (469) - - (4.69)
to other equity , 116.91 - 116.91
At March 31, 2018 (570.39) 11.59 184.71 558.64 287.82 472.38
Note 9:- Inventories
{As taken, valued and certified by the managemant )
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
z T T
Raw materials 23535 21827 21313
Work-in-progress 11537 28152 291.05
Finished goods 1562.25 13417 5542
Stock in Trade 61.15 -
Stores and spares (including Gas and fuel) 30501 348 54 22512
Total 869.13 982.50 784.72
Note 10 :-  Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
z ¥ ¥
Trade Receivables
-Considered good 4,183 64 2,07919 2,087.02
-Considered doubtful 3350
Less:-Provision for doubtful debts 3350 =
Total 4,183.64 2,079.19 2,087.02
The companies exposure to liquidity risks related to the above financial assets is disclosed in Note 46(b).
Note 11:-  Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
T ¥ 14
Balances with banks
On current accounts 667 613 A
On cash credit account 1867 2886 -
Cash on hand 5 460 21 404
{ {' (“'
Total (NS 29.94 37.10 11.21
¥

} .}\‘40.002023?!
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 12:-  Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Z Z ¥
Deposit with bank original maturity for more than 3 months 18.37 17.21 16.09
but less than 12 month *
Total 18.37 17.21 16.09
* Includes amount as lien for guarantee with Pollution
Control Board Haryana to the extent of 11.01 11.01 11.01
Note 13:-  Other financial assets
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Z z ¥
Security deposits 15.71 8.79 7.73
Interest accrued on security deposit 3.81 9.53 762
Total 19.52 18.32 15.35
Note 14 :-  Current tax asset (net)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ ¥ ¥
Current tax asset (net) ) 24.33 0.32
Total - 24.33 0.32




MJ Casting Limited

Notes to financial statements

Movement of current tax asset (net)

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ ¥ ¥
Opening balance = 032 0.19
Add: Advance tax paid : 125.00 -
Add: TDS receivable - sy 0.12
Less: Current tax provision ) 112.20 -
Closing balance . 24.33 0.32
Note 15 :-  Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ ¥ k4
Capital advance 71.90 122.08 37.58
Suppliers advance
-Considered good 40.92 40.79 20.97
-Considered doubtful - 4.81 9.70
Advances to employees 18.72 7.02 12.03
Prepaid expenses 68.19 48.01 61.69
Other advances = 96.76 102,55
Balances with government authorities
-CENVAT/ Service tax - 26.44 73.02
VAT - - 14.39
Income tax refund receivable 097 - .
Silver coins* 0.29 0.27 0.22
200.99 346.18 332.15
Less:-Provision for doubtful advances . 4.81 9.70
Total 200.99 341.37 322.45
o B ot ] O
O\ pegn.No. 00031 £
* Silver coins in numbers > \NEW DELRL/ & / 53 48 38
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 :-  Equity share capital
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Z Z z
(a) Authorised
5,85,00,000 (March 31, 2018 : 5,85,00,000, 5,850.00 5,850.00 5,850.00
March 31, 2017 : 5,85,00,000, April 1, 2016 : 5,85,00,000)
Equity shares of 10 each
Total 6,850.00 6,860.00 6,850.00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
5,85,00,000 (March 31, 2018 : 5,85,00,000, 5,850 00 5,850.00 5,850.00
March 31, 2017 : 5,85,00,000, April 1, 2016 : 5,85,00,000)
Equity shares of 210 each
Total 5,850.00 5,850.00 5,850.00
Refer Notes (i) to (iii) below
Note :- (i) Movement in equity share capital
Particulars N'umbers Z
(in lacs)
As at April 01, 2016 585.00 5,850.00
Add:- Issued during the year = -
As at March 31, 2017 585.00 5,850.00
Add:- lssued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2018 585.00 5,850.00
Note :- (ii a) Details of shareholder holding more than five percentage of equity shares.
As at As at As at

31 March, 2018

31 March, 2017

01 April, 2016

Name of shareholder Number of | % holding in| Numberof | % holdingin| Numberof | % holding in
shares held | that class of | shares held | that class of | shares held | that class of
(in lacs) shares {in lacs) shares {in lacs) shares
Minda Industries Ltd. and its nominees 585.00 100.00 573.30 98.00 573.30 98.00
Neel Metal Products Ltd. and its nominees - - 1170 2.00 11.70 2.00
Note :- (ii b) Equity share held by holding Company
As at As at As at
Name of shareholder 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016

Number (in lacs)

Number (in lacs)

Number (in lacs)

Minda Industries Ltd. and its nominees

585.00

573.30

573.30

Note :- (iii) Terms/rights attached is set out below

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

\@@

*
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 17:-  Other Equity (Reserve and surplus)

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 Mareh, 2017 01 April, 2016
4 T T
Retained Eamings (1,037.01) (1.54399) (2.454.69)
Profil for the year 1,382.00 50167 91898
Deferred lax on share based payment 11691 = =
Remeasuremenls of posl employment benefit obligations, net of 885 530 (8 28)
tax
Closing balance 470.75 (1,037.01) (1,543.99)
Note 18 :- 8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference share capital
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
T T T
(a) Authorised
2,75,00,000 (March 31, 2018 : 2,75,00,000, March 31, 2017 : 2,750.00 2,750 00 2,750.00
2,75,00,000 April 01, 2016 : 2,75,00,000)
8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Z 10
each
Total 2,750.00 2,750.00 2,750.00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up
2,20,04,000 (March 31, 2018 : 2,20,04,000, March 31,2017 : 2,204.00 2,204.00 2,204.00
2,20,04,000 Apnl 01, 2016 : 2,20,04,000)
8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10
each
Total 2,204.00 2,204.00 2,204.00
Refer Notes (i) to (iii) below
Note :- (i) M t in 8% Non-Ci i d bl share capital
Particulars Numbers (in lacs) T
As al April 01, 2016 220.40 2,204 00
Add:- Issued during the year .
As at March 31, 2017 220.40 2,204 00
Add:- Issued during the year = -
As al March 31, 2018 220.40 2,204.00
Note :- (ii) Details of shareholder holding more than five percentage of preference shares.
As at As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Name of shareholder Number of | % holdingin | Numberof | % holdingin | Numberof | % holding in
shares held | that class of | shares held | thatclass of | shares held | that class of
(in lacs) shares (in lacs) shares (in lacs) shares
Minda Finance Ltd. E - 1500 681 15.00 6.81
Minda investments Ltd. 2500 1134 25.00 1134 2500 11.34
Pioneer Finest Ltd. 182 90 8299 167.90 7618 167 90 76 18

Note :- (iii) Terms/rights attached is set out below

8% Non cumulative redeemable preference share of 210 each are redeemable al par al the expiry of 20(Twenty) years from the date of allotment

However, Board shall have an oplion to redeem the same on or before 20(Twenty) years from the dale of allolment keeping in view lhe ability of

1he profitability/surplus funds




MJ Casting Limited (Z in lacs, unless otherwise stated)
Notes to financial statements

Note 19 :- Borrowings (Non current)

As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ z 4
Gacured lean from Bank
-From Axis Bank Ltd
-Term Loan = 860 54 1,620 54
-From ICIC! Bank Ltd
-Term Loan 2,077.72 2,770 29 3,116 58
-Vehicie Loan 3.06 1012 16 52
2,080 78 3,640 94 4,753 64
Unsecured foan
-From Body Corporate . 1,800 00 92775
-Deferred Payment Credit from HSIIDC (Haryana State
Industrial and Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd ) 108 93 15561 -
2,189.71 5,596 55 5,681.39
Less:- Currenl maturilies of long term debt
-From Axis Bank Ltd
-Term Loan = 860 54 760.00
-From ICICI Bank Ltd
-Term Loan 692,57 692 57 34629
-Wehicle Loan 3.06 7.06 6.40
-Deferrad Paymant Credit from HSIIDC 3112 4668
Total 1,462.96 3,989.70 4,568.69

Terms of Repayment

Axis Bank Ltd.- Term Loan (repaid fully during the year 2017-18)

{Rate of Interest : MCLR (1Y) + 90 bps i.e. 9.15% pa.)

a) from April 2013 to Jan 2014 guarterly instalments amounting to ¥ 135 lacs each
b) from April 2014 to Jan 2015 quarterly instalments amounting to ¥ 160 lacs each
c) from April 2015 to Jan 2016 quarlerly instalments amounting to ¥ 1B5 lacs each
d) from April 2016 to Jan 2017 quarterly inslalments amounting to ¥ 190 lacs each
e) from April 2017 to Jan 2018 quarlerly instalments amounting te ¥ 215 lacs each

ICICI Bank Ltd.- Term loan
(Rate of Interest : MCLR (1Y) + 95 bps i.e.. 9.15% pa.)
a) from Oct 2016 to March 2021 quarterly instalments (18 Instaimenls) amounting to 2173 14 lacs each

Nature of Security

Term loan from Axis bank Itd. and ICIC! bank Itd. are pari passu by way of :-

*Equilable mortgage on land and building both present & future of Hosur Plant siluated al Upparapalli, Mathagondapalli, Thally Road,Hosur,
Tamilnadu, India

*Equitable mortgage on land and building bolh present & future of Bawal Plant situated al 323, Phase I/IV, Sector-3, Industrial Growth Centre,
Bawal Distt Rewari, Haryana, India

*Hypolhecalion on all movable fixed assets (excepl vehicles) of lhe Borrower both present & future.

*Furlher secured by way of hypolhecation on Borrower's entire slocks of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable stores and
spares and such other moveables including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, ot ing monies, ivables, bolh presenl and
fulure

Vehicle Loan
(Rate of interest : 9.90%)

*secured against hypolhecation of respeclive vehicle financed by them

Note 20 :- Provisions (Long Term)
q As at As at As at
Particul
articulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ T €

Provision for employee benefits

For gratuity (Refer note 42) 107 54 87,28 8100

For leave encashment 4504 2896 4813

Total 152.58 116,24 129,13




MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21 :- Borrowings (Current)
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
z ¥ 4
Secured

Working Capital Loan from
- Axis Bank Ltd.

- 26.68 19323

- ICIC| Bank Ltd. 4226 = 140.95
Unsecured

Others 1.800.00 683.34 232.54

Total 1,842.26 710.02 566.72

Rate of interest :

(Axis Bank : MCLR (3M) + 100 bps i.e. 9.00% pa.)
(ICICI Bank : MCLR (6M) + 100 bps i.e. 9.15% pa.)

Nature of security:
Working capital loan from Axis Bank and ICICI Bank are paari passu by way of:

*First charge by the way of hypothecation on the entire current assets of the company (Bawal and Hosur) both present and future.

*First charge by the way of hypothecation on the entire moveable fixed assets of the company (Bawal and Hosur) both present and future
*Equitable mortgage on land and building both present and future of Hosur Plant situated at Upparapalli, Mathagondapalli,

‘Thally Road,Hosur, Tamilnadu,India

*Equitable mortgage on land and building both present and future of Bawal Plant situated at 323, Phase II/IV, Sector-3,

Industrial Growth Centre, Bawal Distt. Rewari, Haryana, India

*Hypothecation on all movable fixed assets {(except vehicles) of the Borrower both present and future

*Further secured by way of hypothecation on Borrower’s entire stocks of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable
stores and spares and such other moveables including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables
both present and future

Note 22 :- Trade payables

Particulars 31 M:::l:,t 2018 31 M::\rsc:t 2017 01 Aﬁfn?tzms
¥ e z
Acceptance - - 299,88
Trade payables # 2,928.32 1,608.18 2,100.91
Total 2,928.32 1,608.18 2,400.79
# Includes Minda Industries limited-holding company 140.33 19.97 -

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 based on the information available
with the Company is as follows:

Ministry of Micro and Small Enterprises has issued as office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which
recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers
the Entrepreneurs’ Memorandum number as allocated after filling of the Memorandum.

Based of the information available with the management, there are no overdue outstanding to Micro and Small
enterprises as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Further the company has not received any claim for interest from any suppliers under the said Act

The companies exposure to liquidity risks related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 46(b)




MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 23 :-  Other financial liabilities

(% in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
4 Z Z
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
-From Axis Bank Ltd.
-Term Loan 860 .54 760.00
-From ICICI Bank Ltd.
-Term Loan 692.57 692 57 346.29
-Vehicle Loan 3.06 7.06 6.40
-Deferred Payment Credit from HSIIDC 3112 46.68 ~
Interest accrued and due 3.00 4232 33.46
Capital creditors . B 116.87
Share based payment payable to Minda 6.91 10.87 -
Indusiries limited -Holding company
Total 736.66 1,660.04 1,263.02
Note 24 :- Current Tax Liability
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
z 4 4
Current tax liability (net) 1.78 & =
Total 1.78 - -
Movement of Current tax liability (net)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
4 ¥ Z
Opening balance (24:33) h -
Add: Current tax provision CIdes) - )
Less: Advance tax paid 410:00 h -
Less: TDS Receivable 10.33 . -
Total 1.78 - -
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MJ Casting Limited

Notes to financial statements

Note 25 :- Other current liabilities

(Z in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at As at
DS 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ z L4
Advance from customers / customer at credit 90.34 27.50 0.38
Other payables
Statutory remittances
-Provident fund and Other funds 1747 11.85 12,14
-Excise and Service Tax & 13.82 13.28
-Sales Tax ,VAT and WCT = 25.61 017
-Professional tax payable 1.82 - -
-GST 37164 - -
-Tax deducted and collected at Source 23.98 16.99 35.97
Total 504.95 95.87 61.94
Note 26 :-  Provisions (Short-term)
0 As at As at As at
RRLCUES 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
k4 ¥ ¥
Provision for employee benefits
For gratuity (Refer note 42) 205 1.28 0.96
For leave encashment 5.42 0.72 2.78
Total 7.47 2.00 3.74




MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

(T in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 27 :- Revenue from operations
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
4 £4
Sale of products 28,591.39 22,849.42
Other operating revenues
- Job work /Development income 63.57 50.78
- Sale of Tools and Dies 51.00 30.33
- Sale of scrap 244 .85 154.01
Total 28,950.81 23,084.54
Note 28 :- Other income
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Z Z
Interest income:
. On Bank deposits 4.80 1.21
. On Income tax refund 0.04 -
. Others 4.44 7.10
Provision for doubtful advance written back* - 4.89
Others 48.00 -
Total 57.28 13.20

*In financial year 2017-18, written back is adjusted with provision for doubtful debts.




MJ Casting Limited

Notes to financial statements

Note 29 :- Cost of materials consumed

(T in lacs, uniess otherwise stated)

For the year

For the year

Particul ended ended
articulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
£ 4 £ 4
Inventories at the beginning of the year 218.27 213.13
Add: Purchases during the year 16,390.08 11,454.84
16,608.35 11,667.97
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 235.35 218.27
16,373.00 11,449.70

Note 30 :- Purchases of stock-in-trade

For the year For the year
. ended ended
I
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Z 4
Purchase of Tools & Dies 103.15 20.96
Total 103.15 20.96
Note 31 :- Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
u 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Z T

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 152.25 134.17
Work-in-progress 115.37 281.52
Stock-in-trade 61.15 -

328.77 415.68
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 134.17 55.42
Work-in-progress 281.52 291.05
Stock-in-trade - -

415.68 346.47
Net (increase) / decrease [ 86.91 (69.21)
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MJ Casting Limited

Notes to financial statements

Note 32 :- Employee benefits expense

(Z in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
lcula 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
¥ ¥
Salaries, wages and other allowances 2,457.31 1,865.81
Contributions to provident and other funds 100.19 75.91
Gratuity 38.30 25.66
Leave encashment 40.66 3.28
Share based payments to employees 30.75 10.87
Staff welfare 228.13 160.17
Total 2,895.34 2,141.70|
Note 33 :- Finance costs
For the year For the year
Particular ended ended
articutars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
£4 4

Interest

-To banks 300.03 565.94

-To others 160.56 201.30
Other borrowing cost 13.77 12.51
Total 474.36 779.75

Note 34 :- Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year For the year
Particula ended ended
rs 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Z ¥
Depreciation for the year on tangible assets 1,656.53 1,713.97
Amortisation for the year on intangible assets 413 1.69
Total 1,660.66 1,715.66
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 35:- Other expenses

(Z in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
el LTl 31 Mf.?gﬁf’ 2018 31 MZ:::,d 2017
¥ ¥
Consumption of stores and spare parts 1,296.22 943 02
Power and fuel 1,537.79 1,408.30
Job Work Charges 119,36 82.27
Rent/ Lease rent 115,24 106.44
Repairs
- Buildings 144,36 94.39
- Machinery 163.30 192.91
- Others 7.01 3.83
Insurance 13.54 12.36
Rates and taxes 13.29 21.13
Communication 12.20 12.94
Travelling and conveyance 12817 108 21
Printing and stationery 10.48 13.02
Freight and forwarding 523.09 341.13
Business promotion 292 5.70
Legal and professional 369.63 89.23
Provision for doubtful debts/advances 2869 -
Loss on sale/discard of fixed assets 3.51 12.89
Payments to auditor
- For Audit 478 477
- For Tax Audit 0.75 0.75
- For Limited review 2.25 225
- For Income Tax matter = 0.75
Miscellaneous expenses 23.85 17.57
Total 4,520.44 3,473.86
Note 36 :- Tax expenses
For the year For the year
Particulars G LI
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
4 Z
Current tax on profit for the year 446 .44 112.20
Deferred tax 221.20 134.72
Total 667.64 246.92
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit muitiplies by India's tax rate
For the year For the year
Particulars CICEE G
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
¥ ¥
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 2,049.64 748.59
Tax at India's tax rate (MAT Rate 21.34% /last year 20.38%) 43743 152.63
Effact of disallowance of expenses under MAT 6.45 (1.00)
Effect of allowance of carry forward losses under MAT = - (41.61)
_ k = P\FR
Effect of previous year adjustments Rl B, Sl 221.20 13472
Other adjustments E\ \”O \ 2% 218
i_J \ )
Income Tax Expenses S5 \rean. No T0Z02 T o [ e67.6a 246.92
WA A=A L LR L e
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MJ Casting Limited

Notes to financial statements
Note 37 :- Earnings per share

a) Basic

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year

For the year

Particulars e s
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
4 T
Net profit after tax 1.382.00 501.67
Weighted average number of equity shares used to compute basic eaming per share (in lacs) 585.00 585.00

Basic earnings per share (Nominal value of ¥ 10 each)

2.36

0.86

b) Diluted
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
4 T
Net profit after tax 1.382.00 50167
Weighted average number of equity shares used to compute basic eaming per share* (in lacs) 585.00 585.00
Diluted earnings per share (Nominal value of ¥ 10 each) 236 0.86
“The Company does not have any potential equity shares and thus weighted average number of shares for computation of basic EPS and
diluted EPS remains same
Note 38 :-  Capital and Other Commitments
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ T T
Property, plant and equipment : -
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for (net of advances) 62152 118.79 295.01
Total 621.52 118.78 295.01
Note 39 :- Contingent liabilities
Claims made against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
T Z ¥
Bank Guarantee given lo custom and others 44.50 4950 49 50
Others 3.58 -
Total 48.08 49.50 49.50
Future cash outflows in respect of the above would be determinable on finalization of judgments /decisions QQRAF
pending with various forums / authorities. > -
* *
g Rean. Ne. C02023 11
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 40 :- Assets pledged as security

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings are as follows:

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars Note 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
€ T T

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1" 2994 3710 121
Trade receivables 10 4,183 64 2,079 19 2,087 02
Inventory 9 869.13 982.50 78472
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 12 1837 1721 16.09
Olher financial assets 13 19.52 18.32 15.35
Other current assets 15 200.99 341.37 32245
Total current assets pledged as security 5,321.59 3,475.69 3,236.84
Non Current assets
Freehold land 4 1,864.33 1,864.33 1,708.72
Building 4 1,958 16 2,028 17 2,058.78
Plant and machinery 4 6,074.67 6,965.46 727801
Other ilems of PPE (excepl vehicle) 4 6045 63.18 65.57
Vehicle (against vehicle loan) 4 14 98 1775 3623
Total Non current assets pledged as security 9,972.60 10,938.90 11,147.30
Total assats as sacurity 15,294.19 14,414.59 14,384.15
Note 41:- Leases
(M Operating Leases:

The company has significant operating leases for Plant and machinery under a non cancellable lease

arrangement:

Future minimum lease payments are as follows :

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 01-Apr-16
Particulars
€ T €

Payable within one year 96 62 9295 9024
Payable between one to five years 198.38) 26613 201.99
Payable after more than five years - 4+ +|
Total 295.00 359.08 292.23

Note 42:- The long term defined employee benefits and contribution schemes of the company are as under:

Defined benefit plans

Graluity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retiremenl/exit, death or permanent di

Graluity Act, 1972

Inherent Risk

1tin lerms of the p

of (he Payment of

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by lhe Company and hence it underwriles all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes
tha Ciempany to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate relum on underlying plan assets. This may result in
an increase in cost of providing these benefils (o employees in future. Since the benefils are Jump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risks

Actuarial Valuation Method

The valuation has been carried oul using the Project Unil Credit Method as per Ind AS 19to delermine the Presenl Value of Defined Benefit

Obligalions and the related Currenl Service Cosl and, where applicable, Past

The Benefits Valued

Type of Plan Defined Benefil
Employer's Contribution 100%

Employee’s Contribution Nil

Salary for calculalion of Gratuity Last drawn salary
Normal Retirerment Age 58 Years

Vesting period 5 Years

Benefit on normal retirement

Same as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity
Act,1972 (as amended from time 1o time).

Benefit on early retirement / termination /
resignation / withdrawal

Same as normal retirement benefit based on the
service upto the date of exit

Benefit on death in service

Same as nomal retirement benefit and no vesling
period condition applies

Limit

¥ 20 lacs

Gratuity formula

15/26 * Las! drawn salary “ Number of compleled years




MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Present value of defined benefit obligation : -

(Z in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2018
4 4
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 88.86 81.96
Current Service Cost 28.96 19.11
Interest Expense or Cost 6.59 6.55
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from 0.00 0.00!
- change in demographic assumptions - -
- change in financial assumptions (6.33) 751
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (7.20) (15.61)
- others .
Past Service Cost 274 -
Effect of change in foreign exchange rates - -]
Benefits Paid = (10.97)
Acquisition Adjustment (3.73) -
Effect of business combinations or disposals . -
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 109.59 88.56|
Long term 107.54 87.27
Short Term 2.05 1 28|
Bifurcation of Present Value of obligation :
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
4 4 T
Current liability (Short term) 205 128 0.96
Non-Current liability (Long term) 107.54 87.27 81.00
Present Value of obligation 109.59 88.56 81.96
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement
For the year For the year
ended ended
Bariculars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2018
4 4
Current Service Cost 2896 19.11
Past Service Cost 274 -
Loss / (Gain) on settiement =
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net DefinedBenefit Liability / (Asset) 6.59 6.55
Exp Recognised in the Income Statement 38.30 25.66
Expenses Recognised in the Other comprehensive Income
For the year For the year
ended ended
harticulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2018
T T
Actuarial (gains) ( losses
- change In demographic assumptions -
«ghange In financial assumplions (6.33) 7.51
- experience variance (le. Acual experence vs assumplions) (7.20) (15.61)
- others = -]
Retum on plan assets. excluding amount = -
recognisad in net interest expense
Re-measurament (or Actuanal) (gain)/)ass anising = -
because of change in effecl of assel ceiling
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in (13.54) (8.10)
other comprehensive income




MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Actuarial assumption : -

(€ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)}

. As at As at As at
el 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1st April 2016
Discount rate (per annum) 7.80% 7.45% 8.00%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Demographic assumption : -
N As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1st April 2016
iy Retirement Age (Years) 58 58 58
iy Mortality Rate 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%|
iii) Ages
Up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Sensitivity Analysis : -

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given beiow:

Ir (o] ) on pi t value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year
As at As at
. 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Particulars
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (- / + 1%) 129,03 93.93 104.83 75.54
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 17.70% -14.30% 18.40% -14.70%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 94 .47 128.04 76.21 103 32
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -13.80% 16.80% -13.90% 16.70%
Altrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 11058 108.66 89.71 8751
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.90% -0.90% 1.30% -1.20%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 109.59 109.59 88.55 88,56
(% change compared to base due 1o sensitivity) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
z E4
Within next 12 Months 205 1.28
Between 1 and 5 years 16.79 14.36
Between 5 and 10 years 33.1 24.04
10 years and above 452,54 356.92
(ix) Enterprise best estimate of contribution during the next year is
Amount
Particulars
4
Gratuity =

*The scheme is managed on unfunded basis & since the scheme is managed on unfunded basis, the next year contribution is taken as nil
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 43 :- Share based payment

The Company had participated in the Minda Industries Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016 and during the previous year, the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Minda Industries Limited (‘the Parent Company') had approved the grant of 42,000 equity
shares of face value of Rs. 2/- to its whole time director Mr. Atul Swaroop in terms of the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016. The
scheme is monitored and supervised by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of Minda Industries
Limited in compliance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 and amendments thereof from time to time

The Company accounts for Equity Stock Options of the Parent Company as per the accounting treatment prescribed by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,2014 (as amended from time to time) and the Ind AS - 102
on Share Based Payment.

Number of . e Exercise | Exercise Price
Scheme Year | Date of Grant Options granted Vesting Condition Period (INR) per share
42,000 L
Minda options of Equity Gcnicving _tar.get Pf
market capitalization | 1 Year from
Employee 23rd November | shares of face
. 2016 of the parent the date of 180
Stock Option 2016 value of Rs. 2/- X
Scheme 2016 — Company on or before vesting
March 31, 2018
Number of Shares Options
Outstanding at Exercised Exercisable at | Outstanding at
the beginning | Granted during | Forfeited /expired 3 the end of the | the end of the
Scheme Year A during the
of the year the year during the year n year year
01.04.2017 4 31.03.2018 31.03.2018
42,000
Minda 42,000 options of options of
Employee 2016 Equity shares of B . Equity shares " -
Stock Option face value of Rs of face value
Scheme 2016 2/- each of Rs. 2/-
each

Fair valuation

The parent company has provided the fair value of Share based payment cost that have been done by an independent firm of Chartered
Accountants on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Model

The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of grants:

As at 31st March 2018
6.13%-6.51%

As at 31st March 2017
6.13% -6.91%

Particulars

Risk-free interest rate (%)

Expected life of options (years) [(year to vesting) + 1,53 years - 1 .85 years 1.53 years - 1.85 years

27.92% - 43.62%
4.61% - 6.90%

27.92% - 43.62%
4.61% - 6.90%

Expected volatility (%)
Dividend yield

The risk free interest rates are determined based on the zero-coupon yield curve for Government Securities or Government bonds with
maturity equal to the expected term of the option. Volatility calculation is based on annualized standard deviation of the continuously
compounded rate of return of the stock over a period of time. The historical period taken into account to match the expected life of the
option. Dividend yield has been arrived by dividing the dividend for the period with the current market price




MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

Note 44 :-  Related party disclosure

1}  Details of Related Party

a) Holding company ;-
= Minga indusines Limited
b) Fellow subsidiary :-
o Kosei Minda Aluminium Company Limited
- Minda Auto Components Limited
S Minda | Connect Private Limited
- Minda Kosei Aluminium Wheel Private Limited
- Minda Storage Batteries Private Limited
S Roki Minda Company Private Limited
c) Key management personnel
e Mr Atul Swaroop (Whole time director)
s Mr Pawan Agrawal (Chief Finance OFficer)
- Mr Lalit Khubchandani (Company Secretary)

d) Related party transactions :-

(€ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Kosei Minda Aluminium| Minda Auto Components | Minda | Connect Private Minda Industries Minda Kosei Aluminium Minda Storage Batterles Roki Minda Company
Company Limited Limited Limited Limited Wheei Privato Limitod Private Limited Private Limited
Nature of transsctions/Related party
201718 2016-17 2017-18 201817 2017-18 201817 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 201817 2017-18 201817
| 4 r L4 Ld r L4 x L3 r L2 L3 L2 L3 ,
Sales
7,387 35 a78 255
Purchase
In 47123 * 318
Share bused i Nk eapenses
Share bused paymenk e 2024 442
Legal and professional expenses
eg p al exp A 12 6204
Job work income
£3.56 4166
Reimbursement of expenses pad
P P 024 D24 1572 3475 &2t
Reimbursement of expenses received
030 362
Unsecured Loan
= 180000
Interest Paid
138 80 60.29
Service randered
3,93
Sum =
Trade payables
0.28 £ 140.33 19 87
Other financial liabilities
691 10.87
Long-t b i
ong-term borrowings . 1,800.00
Short-term borrowings
1,800.00 =
Other current Liabiiities
= 29.98
Trade Receivables
484 - 1,440.88 =
2)  Managerial Remuneration
For the year For the year
ended ended
Particulara 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
L4 T
Satary and dther allowance 4205 4425
Hauws Rent Allawance 20 36 1872
Canttibutinn ta Provident tund and sther fand 514 §24
Reimbursginsnl of medizal sspenses 015 018

value of perquisites of

car and of expenses on yance,

hip fee and uniform

Exclusive of provisian for future liabilitres in respect of gratuity and feave encashment which are based on actuarial valuation done on overall company basis
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MJ Casting Limited (T in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to financial statements

Note 45 :- Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is lo safeguard their ability to conlinue as a going concern, so that they can conlinue to provide relums for shareholders
and benefils for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

Consistent with others in the induslry, the Company monitors NET Debt to EBITDA ratio i.e. Net debl (total borrowings nel of cash and cash equivalents) divided by EBITDA
(Profil before tax plus depreciation and amortization expense plus finance costs). The Company's strategy is to ensure that the Nel Debt to EBITDA is managed at an
optimal level considering the above factors. The Net Debt to EBITDA ratios were as follows:

For the year For the year

eul ended ended
Haneuars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
3 3
Net Debt 4,005.03 6,269.47
EBITDA 4,184.66 3,244.00
Net Debt to EBITDA 0.96 133
Note 46 ;- Financial Risk Objectives (Ind AS 107)

The Company, as an active supplier for the automobile induslry expose its business and products to various markel risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's
decentralised management structure wilh the main activities in the plants make necessary organised risk system. The reg 1s, inslructions,
implementation rules and in particular, the regular communication throughout the tightly conlrolled management process consisling of planning, controlling and monitoring
collectively form the risk management system used to define, record and minimise operating, financial and strategic risks. Below notes explain the sources of risks in which
the Company is exp o and how it r ges the risks:

a) Market risk

Market risk is Lhe risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in market prices. Markel prices comprises three
types of risk: currency rate risk, inlerest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodily price risk. The sensitivity analyses in lhe following seclions
relate to Lhe posilion as at March 31 2018 The analyses exclude lhe impact of movements in market variables on; lhe carrying values of gratuity and olher post-retirement
obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is Lhe risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rales. The Company's exposure
Lo the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relales primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

The Company transacts substantial business in local currency only, however there is few impori of Raw material & Plant and Machinery in foreign currency as well The

Company has only foreign currency trade payables and company is less exposed to foreign exchange risk The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its
exposure to movements in foreign exchange rales, however no such forward exchange conlract is oulslanding as on March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017, April 01, 2016

Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposure

As at As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Currency 5 1y 7
Foreign Exchange rate . Foreign Exchange rate Amount in Foreign Exchange rate .
currency in") Amount in currency {in") € currency {in") Amount in ¥
Amount ( Amount Amount
Trade Payables
-JPY 122 00 081 7471 - . = - - -
Advance to Vendaors
-UsSD 0.54 65.07 35.01 = - - - B

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

The following tables demonsilrate the sensilivily lo a reasonably possible change in JPY exchange rales, wilh all other variables held constanl The impact on the company
profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabililies.

For the year For the year
ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Change +1% | Change -1% | Change +1% | Change-1%
L4 4 L4 ¥
Trade Payable
-JPY (0.75) 075 -
(i) Interest Rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in market inleresl rates. The Company's main
interesl rate risk arises (rom long-term borrowings with variable rates, which exposes lhe Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2018 and March 31,
2017, the Company's borrowings at variable rale were denominated in INR
The Company's fixed rate borrowings are caried at amorlised cost They are therefore not subject to interest rale risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying
amount nor the fulure cash flows will lucluate because of a change in market interest rates
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporling period are as follows:
As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ L4 ¥
Yariable Rale borowings R’" 211998 3,657 50 5,071 30
Fixed Rate Borrowings QP' Pa) 1,911 99 1,96573 927 75
Total / -e-/: N0\ 4,031.97 5,623.23 5,999.05

Rean. No. 002023
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MJ Casting Limited
Notes to financial statements

(¥ in lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporiing period was outstanding for the whole year

Particulars

Impact on prafit after tax

For the year
ended
31 March, 2018

For the year
ended
31 March, 2017

¥

¥

Increase by 0.5%
Decrease by 0.5%

(10 60)
10.60

(18.29)
1829

(iii) Other price risks

Fluctuation in commodity price affects direcily and indirectly the price of raw material and componenls used by the Company in ils various preducls Substantial pricing
pressure [rom major OEMs lo give price cuts and inability to pass on the increased cost to cuslomers may also affect lhe profitability of the Company

b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet ils present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceplable losses. The
Company's objective is to, at all limes maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meel its cash and collaleral requirements, The Company closely monilors its liquidity position

and deploys a robusl cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on

pay
) Ondemand | e55H3M3 1542 months| 1-5vears | Morethans Total
Particulars months Years
T L4 1 T L4 T
As at 31 March, 2018
B% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - - - - 2,204 00 2,204.00
Borrowings (Long Term) - - - 1,462 96 - 1,462.98
Borrowings (Shorl Term) 4226 - 1,800.00 = - 1,842.26
Trade payable = 2,928.32 - - - 2,928.32
Other financial liabilities - 197.49 539.17 - - 736.66
As at 31 March, 2017
8% Non-Cumulalive Redeemable Preference Shares - - - - 2,204 00 2,204.00
Borrowings (Long Term) = - - 3,989 70 - 3,989.70
Borrowings (Short Term) 2668 683 34 - - 710.02
Trade payable = 1,608.18 - - - 1,608.18
Other financial liabilities = 474.28 1,185.75 = = 1,660.04
As at 01 April, 2016
8% Non-Cumulalive Redeemable Preference Shares - - - - 2,204.00 2,204.00
Borrowings (Long Term) - = - 4,568 69 = 4,568.69
Borrowings (Short Term) 33418 - 23254 - =1 566.72
Trade payable - 2,400.79 - - - 2,400.79
Other financial liabilities 22500 1,038 02 = - 1,263.02

c) Credit risk

Credit Risk is the risk that Lhe counler party will nol meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed lo credit risk from its operating activities (primarily rade receivables) and from its financing aclivilies, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions

and other financial instruments

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by Company subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating lo credit risk it
O ing customer ivables are regularly monitored
The table below summarises the ageing bracket of trade receivables.
Gross carrying amount
q As at As at As at
Particulars
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
¥ (4 [4
(Current (not past due) 3,506 12 1,362 18 1,636 74
1-30 days past due 580.83 687 97 371 42
31-60 days pasi due 7468 411 2207
61-90 days past due 15,93 129 1689
Mare lhan 80 days pasl due 39.59 23 64 39 90
The following table summarizes the change in loss allowance measured using the life lime expecled credit loss model:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
¥ L4
At the beginning of the year =
Pravision duting the year 3350 -
Bad dents writtan off -
Raversal of pravision -
Atthe end of the year 33.50 =

{ii) Financial instruments and cash deposit

*
w

Credil risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's (reasury depariment in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made in bank deposils and other risk free securities All balances with banks and financial instilutions is subject to low credil risk due to good credit
ralings assigned lo the Company



MJ Casting Limited

(€ in lacs, unless otherwise slated)
Notes to financial statements

Note 47 :-  Falr value measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category

As at As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 April, 2016
Particulars FVPL Fvoc Amoriised Cost FVPL Fvocl Amortised Cost FVPL FVoCi Amortised Cost
[d T z Ld [ Ld 1 L4 L4
Financial Assets
Investments. 259 183 E E 184
Jrade Recanvables 418364 . 207919 2,087 02
Loans : . i . B
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 2994 z 2 a7 10 = = 112t
[Bank Balance other than above 1837 - R 1721 B 1609
Other financial assets = 122 45 . 16582 = N 138 27
Total et asante . 250 4.354.40 E 1.83 2.209.12 E 183 2,252.50
Financial liabililies
8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares . 2,204 00 E - 2,204 00 2,204 00
Porrowing E - 3,305 22 E . 459972 . = 5,135 41
[Rezesiierets . 292832 . - 1,608 18 - - 240073
Share based payment payable . ) . T )
Other financial habilities (other than share 72975 1,649 17 1,263 02
based payment payable) B - = = =
Total financial fiabilities 691 - 9,187 29 10.87 - 10,181.07 - - 11,003.23
* Management has assessed lhat trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, lrade payables and Interest accrued on borrowings approximate
their carrying amounis largely due lo the short-term malurities of these instruments.
Discount rate used in determining fair value
The interesl rate used to discount estimated fulure cash flows, where applicable, are based on the incremenlal borrowing rale of borrower which in case of financial liabilities is average
market cos! of borrowings of the Company and in case of {inancial assel is the average markel rate of similar credil rated instrument. The company maintains policies and procedures o
value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and mosl relevant data available
The fair value of the financial assels and liabilities is included at (he amounl at which the i could be in a current ion between willing parties, other thanin a
forced or liquidation sale
{i) Fair value hlerarchy
As at As at As at
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017 01 Aprif, 2018
. . Financial . . Financial . N Financial
Partiulary :r""z':::: ‘E":f:y Liabilities-Share :r"":"o‘::: :':f: Liabilities-Share Jr""i':';' AE'::; Liabilities-Share
G q based payment il WY paged payment il q based payment
y y Payabk
L4 4 L4 L4 4 e
Level - 1 - - - -
Level - 2 - 591 - 1087 - .
Level -3 250 - 183 183
Total 250 691 183 10.87 183 E

~ There is no considerable change in the fair value of Unquoted Equity inveslment, hence it is same as Carrying value as on April 01, 2016, March 31, 2017
and March 31,2018

# Refer Nole-43
Note 48 :-  First time adoption of Ind AS

As stated in Note 2A, these financial slatements for the year ended March 31, 2018, are the Company's first financial prep in with Ind AS. For lhe periods uplo
and included 31 March 2017, the Company had prep: its financial in with i notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
olher relevant provisions of the Act (‘previous GAAP’),

Accordingly the Company has prepared these financial slatements which comply with Ind AS appficable for year ended on March 31, 2018, logether with the comparative period data for
the year ended 31 March 2017 and Ind AS opening balance sheet as al 1 April 2016 Furiher, in presenling the comparalive information, the Company has adjusted amounts reported
previously in financial slatements prepared in accordance wilh previous GAAP. This note explains lhe principal adjustments made by Ihe Company in reslating its financial slatements
prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, and how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial posilion, financial performance and cash flows

The accounling policies sel out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing these financial stalements for lhe year ended 31 March 2018 i ing the paralive i ion for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and the opening consolidaled Ind AS balance sheet on the date of lransition i e, 1 April 2016

A) Optional i availed and v

Ind AS 101 allows first-lime adoplers certain { from Lhe i ication of certain i under Ind AS. The Company has availed the following exemplions:

i» Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The Company has elected to conlinue wilh the carrying value of all of ils plant and equipment and intangible assels as recognised as of April 01, 2016 (transilion dale) measured as per the
previous GAAP and use thal carrying value as ils deemed cost as of the transition date

Estimates
The estimales al April 01, 2016 and al March 31, 2017 are consislent with those made for the same dales in accordance with Indian GAA Gistments ta reflect any dilferences in

accounting policies, if any) %PJ“LHF GJ




MJ Castina Limited (Ein lacs, uniess otherwise stated)
Notes to financial statements

B) Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income

The following table represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS

(i} Reconciliation of equity

As at As at
J1st March, 2017 1st April, 2016
Particulars Note . Adjustment as per . Adjustment as per
Previous GAAP Ind AS Ind AS Previous GAAP Ind Total
Ld L4 r L1 T r
L ASSETS
M Non-currant assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 10,938 80 10,938 90 11,147 30 - 11,147 30
{b) Capital work-in-progress 5 1554 1554 27215 - 27215
{e) Intangible assets 4 1410 . 1410 380 . 380
(h) Financial assets
(i) Invesiments. (-] 183 183 183 L 183
(1i) Other financial assets T 147 30 = 147 30 12292 12292
{l)_Defaoed tas assets fret) L] 580 83 053 58136 71888 - 71888
Sub-total - Non-Current Assets 11.688.49 0.53 11.699.02 12,266.88 2 12,268.88
[+ Current assets
{a) Inventories 9 982 50 L 982 50 78472 > 78472
{b) Financial assets ~
{i) Trade receivables 10 2,079 19 . 2,079 18 2,087 02 - 2,087 02
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 1 710 . a7 10 1121 . 121
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equiv| 12 1721 L 1721 16 09 - 16 09
(iv) Other financial assets 13 18 32 . 18 32 1535 - 1535
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 2433 = 2433 032 032
| {d) Other Current Assets 15 34137 - 34137 322 45 - 322 45
Sub-tolal - Current Assets 3.500.02 - 3.500 02 3,237.18 - 323716
TOTAL - ASSETS 15.198.51 0.53 15.199 04 15.504.04 . 15,504 04
] EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
m Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 18 5,850 00 = 5.850 00 6,850 00 - 5,850 00
b Other equity 17 (1,035 00} (101} {1,037 01) {1,543 99) - (1.543 903
Sub-total - Shareholders’ funds 4,814.00 {1.01) 4.812.99 4.306.01 - 4.306.01
Liabilities
12)| (a) Non-current liabilities
(i) Financial tiabilities
-8% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Sharef 18 2,204 00 - 2,204 00 2,204 00 £ 2,204 00
-Borrowings 19 3,989 70 = 3,989 70 4,568 69 . 4,568 69
{u) Provisions 20 11624 - 11624 129 13 = 129 13
Sub.total - Nanaurrent liabilitios 6.309.94 = 6.309.94 6.901 82 : 6.901 82
(b) Current liabilities
{i} Financial labilities
-Borrowings 21 71002 - 710 02 566 72 . 566 72
-Trade payables 22 1,608 18 - 1,608 18 240079 s 240079
-Other financial liabilities 23 1,658 50 154 1,660 04 1,263 02 - 1,263 02
(it) Other current liabilities 25 95 87 - 9587 8134 - 6194
{iii} Provisions 26 200 - 200 374 - 274
Sub-total - Qurrant liabilities 4,074.57 1.54 4.076.11 4,296.21 - 4.296.21
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,198.51 0.53 15,198.04 15,504.04 - 15.504.04
{ii} illation of total comp Incamé for the year cndod 31 March. 2017
Particulars Note Previous GAAP Mju't’:':g“ Pef Ind AS
€ € v
A Income
(1) Revenue {rom operations 27 23,084 54 - 23,084 54
(i) Other income 28 1320 . 1320
Tatal Income’ 23,097.74 . 23,097.74
B 2 Expenses
{) Cost of materiais consumed 20 11,448 70 . 11,449 70
(i) Purchases of stock-n-trade 30 2096 2096
(i) Changes in inventones of finished goods, work-in-prag| 31 {69 21)| . (69.21)
(iv) Excise duty on sales 283673 - 283673
(v) Employee benefits expense 32 2,940 18 154 2,141 70
(vi) Finance costs 33 77875 - 77975
(vii) Depreciation and amorlisation expense M 1,715 66 - 171566
{viir) Other expenses kLY 3,473 86 3,473 86
Total expenses 22,347 61 154 2234915
c 3 Profit belore tax (A - B) 750.13 (154) 74859
o 4 Tax expense:
(i) Current tax 11220 E 11220
{il) Deterred tax expense * 13525 (053) 134 72
247.45 {0.53). 24692
E 5 Net Profit for the year {C - D) | 502.88 {1.01) 501.87
F 6 Other Comprehensive Income lor the year
() Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
of post employ benefit 810 - 810
obligations
-Deferred tax on remeasurements of post employment 280 - 280
nonslit oniifiatane
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, netal 530 - 5.30
tax
Tutal Comprehensive Income for the.year {E + F, 507,98 (1.01) 506 97
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©)

i)

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

ix)

Footnotes to the r iliation of equity as at April 01, 2016 and March 31, 2017 and profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2017:

Financial Instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency coniracts, interest rate swaps, currency swaps, principal only swaps and commodity fixed price swap

contracts, to hedge ils foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodily price risks, respectively and Hedge accounting as permitted under Ind AS 108 and as per Company
accounting policy is applied for the purpose of Accounting in the financial stalements

As per Ind AS 109, such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivalive contracl is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Loans/other financial assets/ other current assets:

{i) As per Schedule I!l, Security Deposits are to be classified under Loans or Other Non-current/Current Assets respectively. Accordingly, Security Deposits which are financial in
nalure are classified under Financial Non-current/ Currenl Assels respectively

(ii) Under IGAAP, Loans and Advances were shown together under Loans and Advances. However, as per Schedule lll, Loans are classified under other Non-current/Current Assets.

Financial liability

Under Ind AS 32, the Redeemable f Shares are i as Financial Liability with portion of the debt

Deferred tax:

(i) IGAAP requires deferred tax accounling using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS
12 requires entities lo account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liabilily in the
balance sheel and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under IGAAP

In addition, the various ransilional adjustments lead {o temporary differences. According lo the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred Tax
adjuslments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained eamings or profil and loss respectively

(ii) As per Ind AS 12, the Company has considered MAT entitiement credit as deferred tax asset being unused tax credit entitiement

Investments:

The Company has designated investments in equity at Fair Value through OCI (FVOCI). Ind AS requires FVOCI invesiments to be measured at fair value. Al Lhe date of transition lo
ind AS, difference between the fair value of invesiment and IGAAP carrying amount has been recognised in Retained Eamings. However Lhere is no change in fair value observed

Revenue from operations:

(i) Under IGAAP, cash discounts and other discounts directly attributable to sales was recognised as part of other expenses which has been adjusted against lhe revenue under Ind
AS during the year ended March 31, 2017

(i) Under IGAAP, revenue was presented net of excise duty. However, as per Schedule Il lo the Ci ies Act, 2013, from operations is to be shown inclusive of excise
duty Accordingly, excise duty has been included in revenue from operations and shown separately as an expense

Defined benefit liabilities:

Both under IGAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under IGAAP, the entire cost, including
actuarial gains and losses, are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements (comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in nel interest on the net defined benefit liability and the retumn on plan assels excluding amounts included in net interest on the nel defined benefit liability)
are recognised immediately in lhe balance sheet with a comesponding debil or credit to relained earnings through OCI

Other comprehensive income

Under Previous GAAP, the Company has not presented Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Previous GAAP profit to profit or loss as per Ind AS
Further, Previous GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

Cash flow statement

The transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS do nol have a material impacl on the statement of cash flows
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